DRAFT RFP QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS
1 JULY 2004
1.  In the Statement of Objectives for the vPC Program paragraph 3.1 indicates that functionality will be developed and implemented in 15 to 20 week cycles.  Since this is an IDIQ contract will each development cycle be encapsulated into individual task orders?
ANSWER:  Yes, the individual task orders are envisioned to be a two step process - requirements Analysis and Design for Gov’t baseline and approval, followed by development, testing, QA and implementation/roll-out.

2.  The same paragraph references an Initial Operational Capability.  How is IOC defined for this program?

ANSWER:  IOC is thought to be the initial functionality of a particular process (e.g. Retirements) that may be only a sub-set of the total functionality (e.g. retirements without waivers) required, and which may be deployed to a sub-set of the Total Force (e.g. active duty).  This will be determined for each spiral upon completion of the requirements analysis and design.
3.  SOW paragraphs 6.1.15 and 6.1.16 reference the CMMI model.  Will firms who are currently externally certified to be operating at CMM Level 3 or higher be considered to be operating at an equivalent level of maturity?
ANSWER:  Yes, as long as they can produce the assessment disclosure statement/information that is requested in RFP Section L.
4.  What is the anticipated period of performance for Task Order 1 for performing the Retirements Analysis and Design?

ANSWER:  Commencing immediately following contract award (anticipated late Aug or early Sep) with anticipated completion in Oct/Nov 04.
5.  Section L refers to Task Order 1 as the “Requirements Module.”  Section M refers to Task Order 1 as the “Retirements Module.”  Are these two different modules?  Will Task Order 1 address the Retire Analysis and Design SOO?
ANSWER:  They are indeed the same and the wording has been clarified.
6.  There appears to be some ambiguity in the requirements for SEI CMM certification.  Please clarify the SEI / CMM certification (assessment) level (minimum) required for this solicitation and if this applies to the Prime contractor only or to the Prime contractor and subcontractors.

ANSWER:  Language in Section L and M has been rewritten.
7.  Please clarify what certification process you require (i.e., CMM Level x vs. CMMI) – there is inconsistency between L and M of the Draft RFP.  

ANSWER:  Language in Section L and M has been rewritten.
8.  In the event technical integration support is brought in from a product vendor does the CMM requirement extend to that product vendor’s professional service staff?
ANSWER:  So long as the company awarded the contract is managing the project with procedures that reflect their CMMI certification level, and assure the government that the subcontractor is performing to those standards, then the subcontractor would not be required to have a CMMI certification.
9.  Does the Air Force require the vendor to have previous DoD experience, specifically experience in complying with DoD architectural standards?  If not, how do you envision a vendor demonstrating relevant experience developing IT enterprise architecture according to these standards?
ANSWER:  No, we do not require the vendor to have previous DoD experience, but a vendor with such experience would likely receive credit for such experience in the evaluation of the proposal.  A vendor without DoD architectural experience should consider demonstrating how their architectural experience is applied to the standards they have adopted, and then possibly discuss how they believe that they are capable of adapting that experience to the requirements of the DoD Architectural Framework.  (See http://www.defenselink.mil/nii/doc/)
10.  Please define the context and meaning of Business Process Reengineering as it applies to this requirement and what specific experience characteristics are you seeking to meet this requirement.

ANSWER:  One generalized definition of BPR is that it is "the analysis and design of workflows and processes within and between organizations" (Davenport & Short 1990), but we do not plan to define the exact nature of BPR that a vendor must possess.   We will be looking at the experience presented and determining if it seems reasonable that such experience will be beneficial to the work proposed in the RFP and the approach suggested by the vendor’s proposal.
11.  [General] Will the company that assisted the Air Force with the development of the Draft RFP/RFP be conflicted out of participating in bidding for this effort?

ANSWER:  Yes.
12.  [Section M, 2.4.3 Subfactor 3 – Experience] Architecture development criterion indicates that evaluation will be relative to 3 years’ recent and relevant experience developing IT Enterprise Architecture according to DoD architectural standards. Within the commercial domain, IT Architecture standards are often similar to, or equivalent to, DoD standards. Will recent and relevant experience in such commercial environments be considered?

ANSWER:  Yes.  A vendor without DoD architectural experience should consider demonstrating how their architectural experience is applied to the standards they have adopted, and then possibly discuss how they believe that they are capable of adapting that experience to the requirements of the DoD Architectural Framework.  (See http://www.defenselink.mil/nii/doc/)
13.  [Section L, 5.1] Would the Air Force consider Past Performance references that commenced more than three years ago but ended within the last 36 months?

ANSWER:  Yes.
14.  [Section L.8 Subsection - a(4)C.4 Page 115] Does “the number of person hours” requested represent total task hours or hours per person on the task?

ANSWER:  Could not find referenced section.  There is not a Section L.8, nor 115 pages in Section L.  No such section found in any other draft document posted.
15.  [Section L.8 Subsection - a(4)C.8 Page 115] What information is expected in the ”person-level task-loading chart”?  Hours per person, or percentage of full time equivalent?  Loading per task or for the total project?

ANSWER:  Could not find referenced section.  There is not a Section L.8, nor 115 pages in Section L.  No such section found in any other draft document posted.
16.  [Section L 1.4] Are the “colors of money”, i.e., 3400 and 3600 appropriations reversed?  Do the appropriations/budget amounts include services, hardware, software, and expenses?

ANSWER:  No, the numbers are correct.  They include amounts budgeted for this contract.
17.  [Section L 2.4b] Should this read FAR 3.104-4 instead of 3.104-5?

ANSWER:  Correct, changed to FAR 3.104-4.
18.  [Section L 4.2.3 and 4.6] Should the wording in these sections read Retirements Module instead of Requirements Module?

ANSWER:  Yes, wording changed to clarify. 
19.  [Section L 7.1.1-7.1.8] Letters H and I are missing…

ANSWER:  Sections H and I added.
20.  [Section M 1.0] Should there be a Section 1.1?

ANSWER:  Yes, corrected.
21.  [Section M 2.4.2, Bullet 12] Please define the acronym CPR…did the Government mean to say BPR?

ANSWER:  Bullet deleted, not required.

22.  [vPC SOO 2.2] Please specify whether any component of vPC will need to be classified.  Please specify if any systems that the vPC will integrate/interface with will be a classified system.  Please specify if classified data will need to be accessed at any point during the program.

ANSWER:  No classified systems involved for this contract.
23.  [vPC SOO 6.11-14] Will Government provide forms for CPR, CWBS, IMP and IMS or will they accept Offeror furnished format?
ANSWER:  Contractor format acceptable.
24.  [vPC SOO 6.15] Please clarify if the Government seeks formal assessment at CMMI L3 or CMM L3?  Please clarify which organization will be assessed at the SEI level – AFPC, ESC/HR, or vPC project team (asking question as there will be significant effort involved in training/documentation that are not directly related to the project to assess an organization).

ANSWER:  Formal assessment not specifically required; however, it is an item for positive consideration.  Requirement for government team assessment has been removed.
25.  [Retirements SOO 1.1.4] Clarify the critical success factor – is it possible to quantify reduction of manpower on retirement process?

ANSWER:  There are not specific objectives quantified for this process.
26.  [Retirements SOO 2.0] Is CMM/CMMI a requirement for this task order?

ANSWER:  The process maturity requirement is for the vPC ID/IQ contract.
27.  [VMPF Retirements Application Enhancement Document] Is the CST lab retirement process final or subject to re-engineering?

ANSWER:  Subject to re-engineering as there is an on-going Gov’t Retirements workshop.
28.  [General Question] Is it the Government’s expectation that Task Order 1 costing will be Time and Materials or Fixed Price?

ANSWER:  FFP LOE anticipated for the first step (see the answer to Question 1), and FFP anticipated for the second step.
29.  [General Question] Does AFPC or ESC have an organization specific C4ISP/ IER?

ANSWER:  No, these are system specific.
30.  [General Question] Please provide clarification if the Government is using the terms software engineering, development guidelines, and systems engineering interchangeably…and within the context of GCSS?

ANSWER:  Yes.
31.  [General Question] Could we have a copy of the following clause from the Air Force Procurement regs: AFFARS 5315.305(a)(3)(iii)?  This clause just doesn't seem to be in the Air Force regs listed at: http://farsite.hill.af.mil/vfaffar1.htm
ANSWER:  Changed to AFFARS 5315.305 Table 5315-4.
32.  Section L subsection 1.4 Budgeting/Funding Information provides 3400 (FY04 & 05) at $15M and 3600 (FY06 – 08) at $14M. Are all years fully funded, or have the POMs been approved?

ANSWER:  Yes, all years are funded.
33.  Statement of Objectives (SOO) for the vPC Program (Draft Ver 10) states: “initially, functionality will be added to the existing MilPDS legacy system (section 1.0 of the SOO).” Will the 3400 funding programmed for ’04 and ’05 be used to upgrade the existing application or is the funding for the requirements and design of the initial development applications?

ANSWER:  It will be used for both, but the appropriate type of funding will be available for each individual task order at the appropriate time.
34.  SOO Section 3.7.6 uses the phrase “Major Software Components.” Will the definition of “Major Software Components” be based on magnitude of functionality or costs?

ANSWER:  SOO changed to read “all software components.”
35.  SOO Section 3.6 covers sustainment by a third party vendor. Is the program plan to select a support vendor early and have them participate in development, or is this to ensure being able to complete support in the future?

ANSWER:  Yes, there is a plan to select a support vendor for our major systems including the software delivered under this contract.  We want to ensure long term sustainability.

36.  Does the current system(s) have any level of DII COE certification? It is understood that the architecture roadmap for vPC must be GCSS-AF compliant, but what about the initial functionality built on top of the existing legacy MilPDS system?  Is there any expectation for GCSS-AF compliance for the legacy system?

ANSWER:  Current systems are not DII COE certified.  There is no expectation that legacy systems will be made GCSS-AF compliant.  The intention is for the vPC technology layered on top of legacy to be GCSS-AF compliant.
37.  A “Future Architecture” is referenced repeatedly in the SOO and section M. Is this the conceptual architecture described in the vPC vision briefing? Does a more detailed (logical) model exist of this architecture?

ANSWER:  Yes, see the “vPC Technical Architecture Roadmap” document previously posted to the HERBB project page on 3 Jun 04.
38.  SOO Section 2.1 lists 12 major functions. How many are currently operational in the legacy system(s)?

ANSWER:  Eleven of 12 functions are operational to some degree.  Force Development Toolkit is the only totally new requirement.
39.  What is the expected start-up, or transition period, for this contract following award?

ANSWER:  As soon as possible after contract award (anticipated late Aug or early Sep).
40.  Section L, Subsection 2.1.5 describes the oral presentation, and limits each offeror to no more than two people.  We respectfully request that this limit be modified to allow each company comprising a team the option to have one representative.

ANSWER:  The limit was changed to no more than four people.  We will take your request into consideration.
41.  Are there any expectations on the part of the government concerning locations for the development work, or access times for the program manager?  Are there any programmatic or political reasons why the development would need to be performed within the San Antonio area?

ANSWER:  We do not specify where the work will be done, nor do we have any defined expectations for access times.  There are no programmatic or political reasons why the development would need to be performed within the San Antonio area.
42.  Will the government provide any workspace, on-site, for the contractor performing this development? If so, will any additional support (equipment, office furnishing, etc.) be provided? If not, will access to the legacy systems be permitted, and what types of access are available?

ANSWER:  We do not plan to provide permanent onsite workspace for the performance of this contract.   However, short term space may be provided on an as needed basis.  We plan on permitting access to legacy development/test environments.
43.  SOO Section 6.1.15 and 6.1.16 define the requirements for CMMI.  We applaud the government’s recognition of the value of following a well-defined, mature systems development process to offer significant reduction in risks.  Paragraph 6.1.16 seems to indicate any assessment would include government program office personnel within the assessment process.  Is this the desired approach?

ANSWER:  Formal assessment not specifically required; however, it is an item for positive consideration.  Requirement for government team assessment has been removed.

44.  Since Air Force Civil Service will be included in the retirement module, is an extensive interface to Defense Civilian Personnel System (DCPS) required/planned?

ANSWER:  Yes.
45.  In Section L, the page count for the Mission Capability Volume is limited to 50 pages, however paragraph 4.6 requires the inclusion of a full proposal including project plan, schedule and deliverables. Is this proposal part of the 50 page limit?
ANSWER:  The proposal referenced in paragraph 4.6 is for Task Order 1.  Section L has been modified to clarify page limits.  See Table 2.7.
46.  Is there any requirement or expectation regarding the place of performance for the development and test aspects of the proposed solution?

ANSWER:  No.
47.  What is the Start Work Date?

ANSWER:  As soon as possible after contract award (anticipated late Aug or early Sep).
48.  How will Past Performance be evaluated, specifically will it be based on the bidding teams collective performance?

ANSWER:  The overall Performance Confidence Assessment Rating that each offeror will receive for past performance will include data on efforts performed by critical subcontractors or teaming contractors, if such resources will be brought to bear or significantly influence the performance of the proposed effort.  See also Section M.
49.  Has the IBM Websphere product been selected as the solution platform of choice?

ANSWER:  Yes, this will be GFE. 
50.  Is there a DOD or Air Force Enterprise Architecture reference model compliance requirement?

ANSWER:  Yes, see vPC SOO para 3.7.2.
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